
NOTICE OF HGMD BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING 

January 16, 2025, at 1:00 P.M. 

Pursuant to Section 24-6-402(2)(c), C.R.S., the Board of Directors of the Heather Gardens 
Metropolitan District hereby gives notice that it will hold a regular meeting at the at the Heather 
Gardens Clubhouse in the boardroom and via Zoom video conference at 1:00 p.m. on January 16, 
2025. The meeting will be held for the purpose of conducting the business of the Heather Gardens 
Metropolitan District. This meeting is open to the public (the executive session will not be open to the 

public).  

Join Zoom 
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/81601701147 

Meeting ID: 816 0170 1147
Pass code: Not Required 
Or Dial-In: +1 346 248 7799    

AGENDA 

1. Pledge of Allegiance

2. Determine quorum present

3. Call meeting to order

4. Consider Approval of/Additions To/Deletions From the Agenda

5. President’s Report

6. Treasurer's Report

7. District Manager's Report

8. Committee Chair Reports

a. Audit/Finance Report – No meeting – David Kennedy has been added to the Audit/Finance

Committee.

b. Capital Program Committee – Oral Report

c. Clubhouse Committee Report – Oral Report

d. Foundation Committee Report – No meeting – Oral Report

e. Golf Committee Report – Oral Report

f. Restaurant Committee Report – Oral Report

g. RV Lot Committee Report – No meeting – Oral Report

9. Consultant/Advisor Reports

10. Review of Financial Reports

11. Unfinished Business

12. New Business

a. Consider Approval of Annual Administrative Resolution

i. Report on Status of Completion of Annual Compliance Items

b. Consider Approval of Election Resolution

i. Consider Approval of Election Services Agreement with Public Alliance, LLC

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/86715655125


c. Discuss Memorandum re HB 21-1110 and Rules Establishing Technology Accessibility Standards

i. Consider Approval of Resolution Adopting Technology Accessibility Statement

ii. Motion 2025-01-16-1 archive old/unnecessary information from HGMD Website

d. Auditor Motion 2025-01-16-3 Approve Engagement of Rubin Brown for 2023 Audit of Financial

Statements Required by Local Government Audit Law

e. Consider Approval of Engagement of Auditor for 2024 Audit of Financial Statements Required by

Local Government Audit Law

13. Public Comments on Non-Agenda Items (time limit of 5 minutes per speaker)

14. Announcements

15. Adjournment

The next HGMD regular Board meeting will be held on Thursday, February 20, 2025, at 1:00 PM.

2888 S. Heather Gardens Way ● Aurora, CO 80014 ● (303) 755-0652 (Office) ● (303) 745-5253 (Fax) 

www.hgmetrodist.org  

http://www.heathergardens.org/


 
 

HEATHER GARDENS METROPOLITAN DISTRICT 

BOARD ACTION 

DATE: JANUARY 16, 2025      MOTION NUMBER: 2025-01-16-1 

MOTION: ARCHIVE OLD/UNNECESSARY INFORMATION FROM HGMD WEBSITE 

 
I move that the Heather Gardens Metropolitan District Board of Directors approve archiving old 

and/or unnecessary information from HGMD website 
 
ECONOMIC COST TO THE DISTRICT: $0 
APPROPRIATED BY: N/A 
 
Motion by: William Gold  Second by: ________________________ 
Rationale: Much of the content of the HGMD Website is not fully accessible and part of the 
statutorily required material for certain special districts to post to websites. The cost to remediate 
materials posted on the website is approximately $6 per page.  As such, the remediation of all of 
the material currently on the website could result in a huge expense to the District. By archiving all 
old and/or unnecessary content, HGMD can focus on the remaining current and statutorily 
recommended content for compliance and accessibility. 
 
Debate: ___________________________________________________________________ 
 
VOTE: 

 Yes No 

William Gold   

Eloise Laubach   

Forrest McClure   

David Kennedy   

Steve Stratton    

Total   

 

  



 
 

 
 

HEATHER GARDENS METROPOLITAN DISTRICT 

BOARD ACTION 

DATE: JANUARY 16, 2025      MOTION NUMBER: 2025-01-16-3 

MOTION: APPROVE RUBIN BROWN TO DO THE 2023 HGMD AUDIT 

 
I move that the Heather Gardens Metropolitan District (HGMD) Board of Directors approve having 
Approve Rubin Brown to do the 2023 HGMD statutory audit 
 
ECONOMIC COST TO THE DISTRICT: $36,000 
APPROPRIATED BY: N/A 
 
Motion by: William Gold  Second by: ________________________ 
Rationale: HGMD is past the required deadline for the 2023 statutory audit. Based on advice from 
legal counsel and timing we should have Rubin Brown conduct the 2023 statutory audit as soon 
as possible. 
 
Debate: ___________________________________________________________________ 
 
VOTE: 

 Yes No 

William Gold   

Eloise Laubach   

Forrest McClure   

David Kennedy   

Steve Stratton    

Total   

 

 

 



1 

ANNUAL RESOLUTION OF  

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 

HEATHER GARDENS METROPOLITAN DISTRICT 

At a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Heather Gardens Metropolitan 

District, City of Aurora, Arapahoe County, Colorado , held at 1:00 P.M., on Thursday, January 

16, 2025 at the Heather Gardens Clubhouse, 2888 South Heather Gardens Way, Aurora, 

Colorado 80014, and via videoconference at https://us06web.zoom.us/j/81601701147 and via 

telephone conference at Dial In: +1 346 248 7799, Meeting ID: 816 0170 1147, Password Not 

Required,  at which a quorum was present, the following resolution was adopted: 

WHEREAS, the Heather Gardens Metropolitan District (the “District”) was organized as 

a special district pursuant to an Order of the District Court in and for the County of Arapahoe, 

Colorado, dated April 6, 1983, and is located within Arapahoe County (the “County”); and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the District (collectively referred to as the 

“Board” or individually as “Director(s)”) has a duty to perform certain obligations in order to 

assure the efficient operation of the District; and 

WHEREAS, Section 32-1-306, C.R.S. requires the District to file a current, accurate 

map of its boundaries with the County Assessor, County Clerk and Recorder and the Division of 

Local Government (the “Division”) on or before January 1 of each year; and 

WHEREAS, Sections 24-10-109 and 24-32-116, C.R.S. require that the District provide 

its name, its principal address and/or mailing address, the name of its agent and the agent’s 

mailing address to the Department of Local Affairs (the “Department”) and keep such 

information updated regularly; and 

WHEREAS, Section 32-1-809, C.R.S. requires that the Board provide notice, containing 

certain information about the District, to the eligible electors of the District no more than sixty 

(60) days prior to and not later than January 15; and

WHEREAS, Section 32-1-104(2), C.R.S. requires that the District, on or before January 

15 of each year, file a copy of the notice required by Section 32-1-809, C.R.S. with the Board of 

County Commissioners, the County Assessor, the County Treasurer, the County Clerk and 

Recorder in each county in which the District is located, the governing body of any municipality 

in which the District is located and the Division; and 

WHEREAS, the Local Government Budget Law of Colorado, Sections 29-1-101 et seq., 

C.R.S., requires the Board to hold a public hearing on proposed budgets and amendments 
thereto, to adopt budgets and to file copies of the budgets and amendments thereto with the 
Division; and

WHEREAS, Section 29-1-205(1), C.R.S. requires the District to file a current list of all 

contracts in effect with other political subdivisions within thirty (30) days of receiving a request 

therefor from the Division; and  



 

2 

 

 WHEREAS, in accordance with the Public Securities Information Reporting Act, 

Sections 11-58-101 et seq., C.R.S., issuers of nonrated public securities shall make public within 

sixty (60) days following the end of each of such issuer’s fiscal year, an annual information 

report or reports with respect to any of such issuer’s nonrated public securities which are 

outstanding as of the end of each such fiscal year; and 

 

 WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 29-1-604(1), C.R.S., if expenditures and 

revenues of the District are not in excess of $100,000, the District may file an application for 

exemption from audit with the State Auditor; or in accordance with Section 29-1-604(2)(b), 

C.R.S., if expenditures and revenues of the District for any fiscal year are at least $100,000, but 

not more than $750,000, the District may file an application for exemption from audit with the 

State Auditor; or in accordance with Section 29-1-603, C.R.S., the Board shall cause to be made 

an annual audit of the financial statements of the District for each fiscal year; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Revised Uniform Unclaimed Property Act, Article 13 of Title 38, 

C.R.S., requires that governmental subdivisions, if applicable, file an annual report listing 

unclaimed property with the State Treasurer by November 1 of each year; and 

 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 32-1-103(15), C.R.S., the legal notices of the District 

must be published one time, in one newspaper of general circulation in the District, and if there 

is not one such newspaper of general circulation, then in one newspaper in each county in which 

the District is located and in which the District also has fifty (50) or more eligible electors; and 

 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 24-6-402(2)(c)(I), C.R.S., the Board shall annually 

designate, at the first regular meeting of the calendar year, a posting place within the boundaries 

of the District for posting of notices; and 

 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to Sections 32-1-903(2), 24-6-402(2)(c)(I) & (III), and 32-1-

903(6)(c) C.R.S., in addition to any other means of full and timely notice, the Board shall be 

deemed to have given full and timely notice of a public meeting, including an annual meeting, if 

the Board posts the notice on a public website of the District or in the designated public place 

within District boundaries, no less than twenty-four (24) hours prior to the meeting; and  

 

WHEREAS, Section 32-1-903(1), C.R.S. requires that the Board shall meet regularly at 

a time and location to be designated by the Board and such location may be physical, telephonic, 

electronic, other virtual place, or combination of such means where a meeting can be attended; 

provided that meetings that are held solely at physical locations must be held at physical 

locations that are within the boundaries of the District or within the boundaries of any county in 

which the District is located, in whole or in part, or in any county so long as the meeting location 

does not exceed twenty (20) miles from the District boundaries, unless the proposed change of 

location for a meeting appears on the Board agenda of a meeting and a resolution is adopted 

stating the reason for which meetings of the Board are to be held in a physical location other than 

under the provisions of Section 32-1-903(1.5), C.R.S. and further stating the date, time and 

physical location of such meeting; and 

 



 

3 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 32-1-904, C.R.S., the office of the District shall be at 

some fixed place to be determined by the Board; and 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 32-1-901(1), C.R.S., each Director, within thirty (30) days 

after his or her election or appointment to fill a vacancy, shall take an oath or affirmation in 

accordance with Section 24-12-101, C.R.S., and the oath must be filed with the County Clerk and 

Recorder, and in accordance with Section 32-1-901(1), C.R.S. with the Clerk of the Court and with 

the Division; and 

 

WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 32-1-901(2), C.R.S., at the time of filing said oath, 

there shall also be filed for each Director a bond; and  

 

WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 24-14-102(2), C.R.S., the District may, in lieu of 

the required bond, purchase crime insurance to protect the District from any dishonesty, theft, or 

fraud; and  

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 32-1-902(1), C.R.S., the Board shall elect one of its 

members as chairman of the Board and president of the District, one of its members as a 

treasurer of the Board and District, and a secretary who may be a member of the Board, or the 

secretary and treasurer may be one individual, who in such case is a member of the Board; and 

 

WHEREAS, Directors may receive compensation for their services subject to the 

limitations imposed by Section 32-1-902(3)(a), C.R.S.; and 

 

WHEREAS, Directors are governed by Section 32-1-902(3)(b), C.R.S., which requires 

any Director to disqualify himself or herself from voting on an issue in which he or she has a 

conflict of interest, unless the Director has properly disclosed such conflict in compliance with 

Section 18-8-308, C.R.S.; and 

 

WHEREAS, Directors are governed by Section 32-1-902(4), C.R.S., which requires any 

Director who owns undeveloped land that constitutes at least twenty percent (20%) of the 

territory included in the District to properly disclose such fact in compliance with Section 18-8-

308, C.R.S. before each meeting of the Board, and such disclosure must be entered into the 

minutes of such meeting; and 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 32-1-1001(1)(o), C.R.S. the Board has the power to 

authorize the use of electronic records and electronic signatures and adopt rules, standards, 

policies, and procedures for use of electronic records or signatures in accordance with the 

Uniform Electronic Transaction Act, Sections 24-71.3-101 et seq., C.R.S.; and 

 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 24-72-204.5, C.R.S., should the District operate or 

maintain an electronic mail communications system, the Board must adopt a written policy on 

any monitoring of electronic mail communications and the circumstances under which it will be 

conducted; and   

 



 

4 

 WHEREAS, Sections 32-1-1604 and 32-1-1101.5(1), C.R.S. require the District to issue 

notice of the authorization or incurrence of general obligation indebtedness to the Board of 

County Commissioners of each county in which the District is located or the governing body of 

the municipality that has adopted a resolution of approval of the District and to record such 

notice with the Clerk and Recorder in each county in which the District is located within thirty 

(30) days of incurring or authorizing such indebtedness; and 

 

WHEREAS, Section 32-1-1101.5(1), C.R.S. requires the District to certify the results of 

ballot issue elections to incur general obligation indebtedness to the Board of County 

Commissioners of each county in which the District is located or to the governing body of a 

municipality that has adopted a resolution of approval of the District within forty-five (45) days 

after the election, or at least thirty (30) days before issuing any general obligation debt if not 

previously certified, and requires the District to file a copy of such certificate with the Division 

of Securities within that timeframe; and  

 

 WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 32-1-1101.5(1.5), C.R.S., the Board of County 

Commissioners or the governing body of a municipality that has adopted a resolution of approval 

of the District may require the District to file an application for the quinquennial finding of 

reasonable diligence; and 

 

WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 32-1-207(3)(c), C.R.S., and unless otherwise 

waived or requested by an earlier date, any special district created after July 1, 2000, must 

electronically file an annual report for the preceding calendar year by October 1st with the 

governing body that approved the District’s service plan or, if the jurisdiction has changed due to 

the annexation into a municipality, the current governing body with jurisdiction over the District, 

the Division, the State Auditor, and the County Clerk and Recorder, and make the same available 

on the website of the District; and 

 

 WHEREAS, in accordance with the Colorado Governmental Immunity Act, Sections 24-

10-101, et seq., C.R.S., the Board is granted the authority to obtain insurance; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Colorado Open Meetings Law at Section 24-6-402(2)(d.5)(II)(A), 

C.R.S. specifies that discussions that occur in an executive session of a local public body shall be 

electronically recorded; and 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 24-6-402(2)(d.5)(II)(E), C.R.S., such electronic 

recording of executive sessions shall be retained for at least ninety (90) days after the date of the 

executive session; and 

 

WHEREAS, in accordance with the Public Deposit Protection Act, Sections 11-10.5-101 

et seq., C.R.S., the Board shall designate an official custodian with plenary authority to deposit 

public funds in any bank which has been designated by the Colorado Banking Board as an 

eligible public depository; and 

 

WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 32-1-104.8, C.R.S., the District must record a 

public disclosure document and a map of the boundaries of the District with the Clerk and 



 

5 

Recorder of each county in which the District is located at any time that an order or decree 

confirming the inclusion of real property into the District is recorded; and 

 

WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 32-1-104.5, C.R.S., (1) within one year of the 

date an order and decree has been issued by a district court for a newly organized metropolitan 

district; or (2) for all metropolitan districts organized after January 1, 2000, such metropolitan 

district, shall establish, maintain and annually update an official website containing specific 

information as set forth in Section 32-1-104.5(3)(a), C.R.S.; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Colorado Office of Information Technology adopted the Rules 

Establishing Technology Accessibility Standards as contained in 8 CCR § 1501-11, et seq., (the 

“Accessibility Rules”) requiring the District comply with the Accessibility Rules; and   

 

WHEREAS, elections may be held pursuant to the Special District Act, Article 1 of Title 

32, C.R.S.; the Uniform Election Code of 1992, Articles 1 to 13 of Title 1, C.R.S.; and the 

Colorado Local Government Election Code, Article 13.5 of Title 1, C.R.S., for the purpose of (1) 

electing members of the Board; and (2) presenting certain ballot questions to the eligible electors 

of the District; and 

  

WHEREAS, Sections 1-1-111(2), 1-13.5-108 and 32-1-804(2), C.R.S. provide that all 

powers and authority granted to the Board may be exercised by a “Designated Election Official” 

designated by the Board. 

  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 

THE HEATHER GARDENS METROPOLITAN DISTRICT AS FOLLOWS: 

 

1. The Board directs the Heather Gardens Association’s general manager in 

accordance with the Management Agreement by and between the District and the 

Heather Gardens Association dated August 23, 2018, as may be amended from 

time to time (the “Manager”) to prepare an accurate map in accordance with the 

standards specified by the Division or directs the Manager to prepare a letter 

asserting there have been no changes in the boundaries of the District, as 

applicable, for filing with the County Assessor, County Clerk and Recorder and 

the Division as required by Section 32-1-306, C.R.S on or before January 1.  

 

2. The Board directs the Manager to notify the Department of the District’s name, 

principal address and/or mailing address, agent’s name and agent’s mailing 

address in accordance with Sections 24-10-109 and 24-32-116, C.R.S. 

 

3. The Board directs the Manager to: (1) provide notice, containing certain 

information about the District, to the eligible electors of the District, not earlier 

than November 16 and not later than January 15, in one or more of the ways set 

forth in Section 32-1-809(2), C.R.S; and (2) in accordance with Section 32-1-

104(2), C.R.S., file a copy of the notice with the Board of County Commissioners, 

County Assessor, County Treasurer, County Clerk and Recorder’s Office in each 

county in which the District is located, the governing body of any municipality in 



 

6 

which the District is located and with the Division.  The Board further directs that 

a copy of the notice shall be made available for public inspection at the principal 

business office of the District. 

 

4. The Board directs the Manager for the District to submit a proposed budget to the 

Board by October 15; to schedule a public hearing on the proposed budget; to 

prepare a final budget, including any resolutions adopting the budget, 

appropriating moneys and fixing the rate of any mill levy; to prepare budget 

resolutions, including certification of mill levies and amendments to the budget if 

necessary; to certify the mill levies on or before December 15; and the Manager to 

file the approved budgets and amendments thereto with the proper governmental 

entities not later than thirty (30) days after the beginning of the fiscal year of the 

budget adopted, in accordance with the Local Government Budget Law of 

Colorado. 

 

5. The Board directs the Manager to prepare and file a current list of all contracts in 

effect with other political subdivisions with the Division within thirty (30) days of 

receiving a request therefor from the Division, if applicable. 

 

6. The Board directs the Manager to prepare and file the annual public securities 

report for nonrated public securities issued by the District with the Department 

within sixty (60) days following the end of the District’s fiscal year, if applicable. 

 

7. The Board directs the Manager to file either an application for exemption from 

audit with the State Auditor within three (3) months after the close of the 

District’s fiscal year, or that an audit of the financial statements is prepared and 

submitted to the Board within six (6) months after the close of the District’s fiscal 

year.  Further, the Board directs that the audit report be filed with the State 

Auditor within thirty (30) days after the Board’s receipt of the audit report from 

the auditor. 

 

8. The Board directs the Manager to prepare the Unclaimed Property Act report and 

forward to the State Treasurer by November 1, if applicable. 

 

9. The Board designates the Sentinel as a newspaper of general circulation within the 

boundaries of the District or in the vicinity of the District if none is circulated 

within the District, and directs that all legal notices shall be published in 

accordance with applicable statutes in the Sentinel. 

 

10. The Board designates the URL Domain https://www.hgmetrodist.org, as the 

District’s official website and posting place for notices of meetings in 2025 

pursuant to Sections 24-6-402(2)(c) and 32-1-104.5, C.R.S. Further, in 

compliance with Section 24-6-402(2)(III), C.R.S., the Board designates the 

Heather Gardens Clubhouse, 2888 South Heather Gardens Way, Aurora, 

Colorado, as the public place within the boundaries of the District at which it may 

https://www.hgmetrodist.org/


 

7 

post notices of meetings if it is unable to post a notice on the District’s official 

website. 

 

11. The Board directs the Manager to maintain and update the official website of the 

District in compliance with Section 32-1-104.5(3)(a), C.R.S. In addition, the 

Board directs the Manager to use their best efforts to comply with the 

Accessibility Rules in accordance with direction and guidance provided by the 

Board and the Colorado Office of Information Technology.  

 

12. Emergency meetings may be called without notice, if notice is not practicable, by 

the president of the Board or any two (2) Directors in the event of an emergency 

that requires the immediate action of the Board in order to protect the public 

health, safety and welfare of the property owners and residents of the District.  If 

possible, notice of such emergency meeting may be given to the Directors of the 

Board by telephone or whatever other means are reasonable to meet the 

circumstances of the emergency, and shall be provided to the public via any 

practicable means available, if any, including, but not limited to, posting notice of 

such emergency meeting on the District’s website, if any.  At such emergency 

meeting, any action within the power of the Board that is necessary for the 

immediate protection of the public health, safety and welfare may be taken; 

provided however, that any action taken at an emergency meeting shall be ratified 

at the first to occur: (a) the next regular meeting of the Board, or (b) the next 

special meeting of the Board.     

 

13. The Board determines to hold regular meetings on the third Thursday of each 

month, at 1:00 P.M. at the Heather Gardens Clubhouse, 2888 South Heather 

Gardens Way, Aurora, Colorado 80014. Any additional means of public 

participation, if any, will be designated on the meeting agenda.  

 

14. Pursuant to Section 32-1-904, C.R.S., the Board determined that the office of the 

District shall be at Heather Gardens Clubhouse, 2888 South Heather Gardens 

Way, Aurora, Colorado 80014.  

 

15. The Board designates ______________ to administer oaths or affirmations in 

accordance with Section 24-12-103, C.R.S. The Board directs the Manager, with 

the assistance of legal counsel to prepare and file an oath or affirmation in 

accordance with Sections 32-1-901 and 24-12-101, C.R.S. In addition to the oath or 

affirmation, the Board directs the Manager to procure either crime insurance in 

accordance with Section 24-14-102(2), C.R.S. or a bond for each Director as 

required by Section 32-1-901, C.R.S. in the total amount of $10,000, and to file 

copies of the crime insurance or bond with the Clerk of the Court and the 

Division. 

 

16. The Board hereby acknowledges that the District’s Bylaws, adopted on June 15, 

2023, and as may be amended from time to time, provide as follows regarding 

election of officers: “Election of officers shall be conducted annually at the first 



 

8 

regular or special District meeting held in May, which, in off-numbered years 

occurs after the election, and at any other time that a vacancy in an office may 

occur.” In accordance therewith, the Board elected the following officers for the 

District: 

 

President/Chairman: William Gold 

Vice President:  Eloise Laubach 

Treasurer:  David Kennedy 

Secretary:  Forrest McClure 

Director:  Steven Stratton 

 

17. The Board directs that each Director may receive compensation for services as 

Directors in accordance with Sections 32-1-902(3)(a)(I) & (II), C.R.S. 

 

18. The Board has determined that when so directed by one or more Directors legal 

counsel will file conflict-of-interest disclosures provided by Directors with the 

Secretary of State seventy-two (72) hours prior to each meeting of the Board.  In 

addition, written disclosures provided by Directors required to be filed with the 

governing body in accordance with Section 18-8-308, C.R.S. shall be deemed 

filed with the Directors of the District when filed with the Secretary of State. 

 

19. The Board authorizes the use of electronic records and electronic signatures. Use 

of electronic records and electronic signatures, when conducting transactions and 

in relation to the administration of the affairs of the District, will be performed 

and governed in accordance with the Uniform Electronic Transactions Act, 

Sections 24-71.3-101 et seq., C.R.S. 

 

20. The Board began operating a District electronic mail communication system 

devoted to the District and directs legal counsel to prepare an electronic mail 

system monitoring policy for its consideration. The Board recognizes that 

electronic mail communications may be a public record under the Colorado Open 

Records Act and may be subject to public inspection under Section 24-72-203, 

C.R.S.  

 

21. The Board directs the Manager to issue notice of indebtedness to the Board of 

County Commissioners or to the governing body of the municipality that has 

adopted a resolution of approval of the District, as applicable, and to record such 

notice with the County Clerk and Recorder in each county in which the District is 

located within thirty (30) days of incurring or authorizing any indebtedness in 

accordance with Sections 32-1-1604 and 32-1-1101.5(1), C.R.S. The Board also 

directs the Manager to certify the results of any ballot issue election to incur 

general obligation indebtedness to the Board of County Commissioners of each 

county in which the District is located, to the governing body of a municipality 

that has adopted a resolution of approval of the District, as applicable, and the 

Division of Securities within forty-five (45) days after such election, or at least 



 

9 

thirty (30) days before the District’s issuance of any general obligation debt if not 

previously certified, in accordance with Section 32-1-1101.5(1), C.R.S. 

 

22. The Board directs the Manager to prepare and file, if requested, the quinquennial 

finding of reasonable diligence with the Board of County Commissioners or to the 

governing body of a municipality that has adopted a resolution of approval of the 

District, as applicable, in accordance with Section 32-1-1101.5(1.5), C.R.S.  

 

The Board acknowledges that it is not obligated to prepare and file an annual 

report in accordance with Section 32-1-207(3)(c), C.R.S. because the District was 

created prior to July 1, 2000, and the Service Plan for the District does not contain 

an annual report requirement. 

 

23. The District is currently a member of the Special District Association (“SDA”) 

and insured through the Colorado Special Districts Property and Liability Pool.  

The Board directs the Manager to pay the annual SDA membership dues and 

insurance premiums in a timely manner and complete all necessary conditions of 

the third-party insurance agent, as applicable.  The Board will review all 

insurance policies and coverage in effect to determine appropriate insurance 

coverage is maintained, at least biannually.  

 

24. The Board directs the custodian of all electronic recordings of executive sessions 

to retain all electronic recordings of executive sessions for purposes of the 

Colorado Open Meetings Law for ninety (90) days after the date of the executive 

session.  The Board further directs the custodian to systematically delete all 

recordings of executive sessions made for purposes of the Colorado Open 

Meetings Law at its earliest convenience after the ninetieth (90th) day after the 

date of the executive session.   

 

25. The Board hereby designates the Manager as its official custodian over public 

deposits in accordance with Sections 11-10.5-101 et seq., C.R.S.  

 

26. The Board directs legal counsel to prepare the special district public disclosure 

statement in accordance with Section 32-1-104.8, C.R.S. and record the statement 

with the County Clerk and Recorder at any such time as a decree or order of 

inclusion of real property into the District’s boundaries is recorded. 

 

27. AJ Beckman of Public Alliance, LLC, is hereby appointed as the “Designated 

Election Official” of the Board for any elections to be held during 2025 and any 

subsequent year unless another Designated Election Official is appointed by 

resolution.  The Board hereby grants all powers and authority for the proper 

conduct of the election to the Designated Election Official, including, but not 

limited to, appointing election judges, appointing a canvass board, cancelling the 

election, if applicable, and certifying election results. 

 

28. The Board hereby authorizes legal counsel to use the District’s name and a brief 



 

10 

description of the work performed for the District for marketing purposes, 

including identifying the District in presentations, proposals, and publications, 

provided that no confidential information about the District is revealed. 

 

[The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.]  



 

11 

Whereupon a motion was made and seconded, and upon a majority vote this Annual 

Resolution was approved by the Board. 

 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED THIS 16TH DAY OF JANUARY 2025. 

 

 

HEATHER GARDENS METROPOLITAN DISTRICT 

 

 

 

        

William Gold, President 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

 

       

Forrest McClure, Secretary



 

 

CERTIFICATION 

 

 

I, Forrest McClure, Secretary of the Board of the Heather Gardens Metropolitan District, 

do hereby certify that the annexed and foregoing Resolution is a true copy from the records of 

the proceedings of the Board of said District, on file with Icenogle Seaver Pogue, P.C., general 

counsel to the District. 

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of the 

District, at the County of Arapahoe, Colorado, this 16th day of January 2025. 

 

 

 

 

              

    Forrest McClure, Secretary 

 

 

[SEAL] 

 

 

 

 

  

 



 

1 

 

ELECTION SERVICES AGREEMENT 

 

 This ELECTION SERVICES AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) is entered into 

effective as of ________________, by and between the HEATHER GARDENS 

METROPOLITAN DISTRICT, a quasi-municipal corporation and political subdivision of the 

State of Colorado (the “District”), and PUBLIC ALLIANCE, LLC, a Colorado limited liability 

company (the “Consultant”), (collectively referred to herein as the “Parties”). 

 

RECITALS 

 

WHEREAS, the District was organized pursuant to the Special District Act, Article 1 of 

Title 32, C.R.S. (the “Act”), after approval of the eligible electors of the District, by order of the 

District Court in and for Arapahoe County, Colorado, dated April 6, 1983; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the District is governed by an elected Board of Directors comprised of 

eligible electors of the District (the “Board”); and  

 

WHEREAS, the Board currently includes five (5) members elected/appointed to staggered 

terms; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the terms of office for two (2) members of the Board shall expire after their 

successors are elected at the next regular special district election scheduled to be held on May 6, 

2025 (the “Election”); and  

 

WHEREAS, the term for two (2) members of the Board for the District, who were 

appointed to fill vacancies on the Board and to serve until the next regular election, shall expire after 

his or her successors are elected at the election to serve the remaining unexpired portion of the term, 

which is two years; and  

 

WHEREAS, elections may be held pursuant to the Act; the Uniform Election Code of 

1992, Articles 1 to 13 of Title 1, C.R.S. (the “Uniform Code”); and the Colorado Local 

Government Election Code, Article 13.5 of Title 1, C.R.S. (the “Local Government Code”) (the 

Act, Uniform Code, and Local Government Code are collectively referred to herein as the 

“Election Laws”) for the purpose of 1) electing members of the Board and 2) presenting certain 

ballot questions to the eligible electors of the District; and 

 

WHEREAS, in accordance with the Election Laws, an election must be conducted to elect 

to the Board of the District two (2) Directors to serve for terms of four years and two (2) Directors 

to serve terms of two years; and 

 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to § 32-1-1001(1)(d)(I), C.R.S., the District is permitted to enter 

into contracts affecting its affairs; and 

 

WHEREAS, the number of Directors to be elected to the Board of the District may increase 

following the execution of this Agreement should a Director’s office be deemed vacant in 

accordance with § 32-1-905, C.R.S. prior to the election; and   



 

2 

 

 WHEREAS, the District desires to retain the Consultant, in the capacity of an 

independent contractor, to manage and conduct all of the District’s affairs and requirements with 

respect to the Election (as further defined herein, the “Election Services”); and  

 

 WHEREAS, the Consultant has experience in providing the types of services required by 

the District and desires to provide the Election Services; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Parties desire to enter into this Agreement to establish the terms and 

conditions by which the Consultant will provide the Election Services to the District. 

 

 NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements 

hereinafter set forth, the sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the Parties hereby agree 

as follows: 

 

COVENANTS AND AGREEMENTS 

 

1. APPOINTMENT OF CONSULTANT. The District hereby retains the 

Consultant, and the Consultant agrees to perform the Election Services for the District pursuant 

to the terms and conditions set forth herein.  

 

2. TERM. The term of this Agreement shall begin on the date set forth above, shall 

be effective as of such date regardless of the date of execution hereof, and shall expire on July 1, 

2025 or upon earlier termination as provided herein. Extensions of this Agreement may take the 

form of letter agreements signed by all Parties. 

 

3. ELECTION SERVICES. The Consultant shall manage, conduct, and provide for 

all of the District’s affairs and requirements with respect to the Election, as more particularly 

described in Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference (the “Election 

Services”). The Consultant shall provide the “Additional Election Services” described in Exhibit 

A-1, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference, only as deemed necessary by the 

District. The Consultant shall obtain approval from the District prior to providing any services 

that vary from the Election Services set forth herein. The Election Services may be provided by 

one or more employees or principals of the Consultant. 

 

4. GENERAL DUTIES AND AUTHORITY. In connection with the Election 

Services, the Consultant agrees to: 

 

A. Provide all Election Services in a good and workmanlike manner using 

that degree of skill and knowledge customarily employed by others performing similar 

services in the Denver metropolitan area and in accordance with any and all 

specifications authorized or ratified by the Board. 

 

B. Furnish, or cause to be furnished, all labor, materials, equipment and 

accessories, as necessary, to provide such Election Services. 

 



 

3 

C. Advise the District of the status of the Election Services required by this 

Agreement on a regular basis and work in coordination with the District’s staff and 

consultants to assure the District has the most complete information available for the 

exercise of the District’s powers and discretionary authority. 

 

D. Refrain from entering into any contract, oral or written, in the name of the 

District, and from incurring any debt, liability or obligation for or on behalf of the 

District, unless approved in accordance with Paragraph 5 below. 

 

5. GENERAL LIMITATIONS AND REQUIREMENTS. The Consultant shall 

perform the duties and have the authority specified in Paragraphs 3 and 4 above. The Consultant 

shall have no right or authority, express or implied, to take any action, expend any sum, incur an 

obligation, or otherwise obligate the District in any manner whatsoever, except to the extent 

specifically provided in this Agreement or specifically authorized or ratified by the Board as 

reflected in the meeting minutes of the Board. The Consultant shall at all times conform to the 

stated policies established and approved by the District. 

  

6. COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS. The Consultant shall provide 

the Election Services set forth herein in full compliance with all applicable laws, ordinances, 

rules, and regulations of any federal, state, county, or municipal body or agency thereof having 

jurisdiction in which this Agreement is performed. The Consultant declares that Consultant has 

complied with all federal, state and local laws regarding business permits, certificates and 

licenses that may be required to carry out the Election Services to be provided under this 

Agreement. 

 

7. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS. The Consultant is and shall be 

considered an independent contractor under this Agreement. Nothing contained herein shall 

constitute or designate the Consultant or any of its employees or agents as employees or agents 

of the District, nor shall the Consultant be deemed or considered as a partner or agent of the 

District. The Consultant shall have full power and authority to select the means, manner and 

method of performing its duties under this Agreement without detailed control or direction of the 

District, except as set forth in this Agreement. AS AN INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR, THE 

CONSULTANT ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREES, PURSUANT TO SECTION 8-40-

202(2)(b)(IV), C.R.S., THAT IT IS NOT ENTITLED TO WORKERS’ COMPENSATION 

BENEFITS AND THAT THE CONSULTANT, AS AN INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR, 

IS OBLIGATED TO PAY FEDERAL AND STATE INCOME TAX ON ANY MONEYS 

EARNED PURSUANT TO THIS CONTRACT RELATIONSHIP. 

 

8. COMPENSATION. 

 

A. Compensation Amount. The District shall compensate the Consultant for 

the Election Services performed pursuant to this Agreement, subject to the District’s 

annual appropriations and in accordance with and subject to all of the conditions of this 

Agreement, for the estimated cost of forty-four thousand three hundred Dollars 

($44,300), based upon unit prices and hourly rates set forth in Exhibit B. Any Additional 



 

4 

Election Services deemed necessary by the District and thereafter performed by the 

Consultant are subject to the hourly rates set forth in Exhibit B. 

 

B. Monthly Reports and Payments. The Consultant shall submit to the 

District a monthly report, in a form acceptable to the District, which describes the 

Election Services performed and summarizes costs paid to date by the District (if 

applicable) and the amount currently due to the Consultant. The Consultant shall submit 

its report together with its invoice to the District by the 5th day of each month for Election 

Services completed in the preceding month. The Board shall review and approve all 

invoices received for payment at the next meeting of the Board. The District reserves the 

right to evaluate all Election Services completed and invoiced for payment. In the event 

Election Services are not accepted for payment by the District, the terms of Paragraph 

8(C) hereof shall apply. 

 

C. Evaluation of Services. The District may evaluate the Election Services 

provided at any time throughout the term of this Agreement and shall notify the 

Consultant if, in the District’s discretion, any or all of the Election Services are not 

provided in accordance with this Agreement. Failure by the Consultant to properly 

provide the Election Services required by this Agreement shall constitute a default 

hereunder. In such case, the District shall provide written notice of said default to the 

Consultant. The Consultant shall have two (2) days to cure the default unless otherwise 

agreed to by the Parties. If the Consultant fails to cure the default within the time period 

provided, the District shall be entitled to pursue all remedies provided by law and in 

equity, including specific performance, and to recover all costs and reasonable attorneys’ 

fees incurred in any suit or claim brought by the District to enforce the terms of this 

Agreement. In addition, in the event of default by the Consultant, the District may hire a 

third party to complete the Election Services, and the Consultant agrees to pay all 

additional costs incurred for completion of the Election Services by a third party. 

 

D. Expenses. The Consultant shall be responsible for all expenses it incurs in 

performance of this Agreement and shall not be entitled to any reimbursement or 

compensation except as set forth in Paragraph 8(A) above unless such expenses are 

approved for reimbursement in advance by the District in writing. The Consultant shall 

not charge the District any other fee for use by the District of the Consultant’s offices, 

personnel, or overhead except as agreed in advance by the District in writing. 

 

9. TERMINATION NOT FOR CAUSE.  In addition to any other rights provided 

herein, the District shall have the right, at any time and in its sole discretion, to terminate, not for 

cause, in whole or in part, this Agreement and further performance of the Election Services by 

delivery to the Consultant of written notice of termination specifying the extent of termination 

and the effective date of termination.  As a result of a termination not for cause, the District shall 

pay the Consultant, in accordance with the provisions hereof, for Election Services performed up 

to the termination and unpaid at termination. 

 

10. LIABILITY OF THE DISTRICT. No provision, covenant or agreement 

contained in this Agreement, nor any obligations herein imposed upon the District shall 



 

5 

constitute or create an indebtedness or debt of the District within the meaning of any Colorado 

constitutional provision or statutory limitation. 

 

11. SUBJECT TO ANNUAL BUDGET AND APPROPRIATION. The District 

does not intend hereby to create a multiple-fiscal year direct or indirect debt or other financial 

obligation whatsoever. The performance of those obligations of the District hereunder requiring 

budgeting and appropriation of funds are subject to annual budgeting and appropriations. 

  

12. NOTICES. Any notices, demands, or other communications required or 

permitted to be given by any provision of this Agreement shall be given in writing, delivered 

personally, sent by facsimile with a hard copy sent immediately thereafter via First Class U.S. 

Mail, or sent via First Class U.S. Mail, postage prepaid and return receipt requested, and 

addressed to the Parties at the information set forth below. 

 

If to the District:  Heather Gardens Metropolitan District 

Heather Gardens Clubhouse 

2888 South Heather Gardens Way 

Aurora, Colorado 80014 

Attn: Evelyn Ybarra 

  

Copy to:    Icenogle Seaver Pogue, P.C. 

4725 South Monaco Street, Suite 360 

Denver, CO 80237 

Attn.: Jennifer L. Ivey 

 

 If to the Consultant:   Public Alliance, LLC 

     405 Urban St., Suite 310 

     Lakewood, CO 80228 

 

Either party may change its address for the purpose of this Paragraph by giving written notice of 

such change to the other party in the manner provided in this Paragraph. 

 

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Consultant shall indemnify, defend and hold 

harmless the District and each of its directors, employees, agents and consultants, from and 

against any and all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, judgments, losses, damages, 

injuries, penalties, costs, and expenses (including reasonable attorneys’ fees), and liabilities of, 

by or with respect to, third parties (“any claims”) to the extent they arise from or may be alleged 

to arise, directly or indirectly, in whole or in part, from the intentional or negligent acts or 

omissions of the Consultant or any of its subcontractors, agents or employees, in connection with 

this Agreement and/or the Election Services provided hereunder. Further, the Consultant hereby 

agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless the District and each of its directors and 

employees from and against any and all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, judgments, 

losses, damages, injuries, penalties, costs and expenses (including reasonable attorneys’ fees) 

and liabilities of, by or with respect to, third parties (“any claims”), arising directly or indirectly, 

in whole or in part, from the intentional or negligent acts or omissions of the Consultant, its 

employees, subcontractors, agents or employees, or the agents or employees of any 



 

6 

subcontractors which causes or allows to continue a condition or event which deprives the 

District or any of its directors or employees of its sovereign immunity under the Colorado 

Governmental Immunity Act, Sections 24-10-101, et seq., Colorado Revised Statutes. Nothing in 

this Agreement or in any actions taken by the District pursuant to this Agreement shall be 

deemed a waiver of the District’s sovereign immunity under the Colorado Governmental 

Immunity Act. Provided, however, that such Consultant shall not be liable for any claim, loss, 

damage, injury or liability arising out of negligence of the District, its directors, employees, 

agents and consultants. The obligations of the indemnifications extended by the Consultant to the 

District under this Paragraph shall survive termination or expiration of this Agreement. 

 

14. INSURANCE. The Consultant shall secure and maintain for the term of this 

Agreement adequate statutory workers’ compensation insurance coverage and comprehensive 

general liability insurance coverage, from companies licensed in the State of Colorado, as will 

protect itself, the District and others as specified, from claims for bodily injuries, death, personal 

injury or property damage, which may arise out of or result from the Consultant’s acts, errors or 

omissions. To provide evidence of the required insurance coverage, copies of Certificates of 

Insurance shall be furnished to the District. 

 

15. RECORD KEEPING REQUIREMENT.  The Consultant shall maintain all 

records and documents relating to this Agreement for three (3) years after the termination or 

expiration of this Agreement.  This includes all books and other evidence bearing on the 

Consultant’s costs and expenses under this Agreement.  The Consultant shall make these records 

and documents available to the District, at the Consultant’s office, at all reasonable times, 

without any charge.  If accepted by the District, photographs, microphotographs or other 

authentic reproductions may be maintained instead of original records and documents. 

 

16. WORK PRODUCT.  All work product of the Consultant prepared pursuant this 

Agreement, including but not limited to all plans, drawings, specifications, reports, electronic 

files and other documents, in whatever form, shall remain the property of the District under all 

circumstances, whether or not the Election Services are completed. When requested, all work 

product shall be delivered to the District in a format compatible to the District’s computer 

applications.  All work product shall be provided to the District at the time of completion of any 

of the discrete tasks specified in the Election Services or at the time of termination of this 

Agreement, whichever event first occurs, and shall be provided to the District’s successor or to 

any subsequent owners, only with the District’s express permission.  The Consultant shall 

maintain copies on file of any such work product involved in the Election Services for three (3) 

years, shall make them available for the District’s use, and shall provide such copies to the 

District, upon request, at commercial printing or reproduction rates.  At any time within the three 

(3) years during which Consultant must retain copies of all work product involved in the Election 

Services, the District may obtain copies of the Consultant’s work product by paying printing or 

reproduction costs as set forth above. 

 

17. CONSULTANT’S TRADE SECRETS AND OPEN RECORDS REQUESTS. 

 

a. Application of the Act.  The Consultant acknowledges and agrees that all 

documents in the District’s possession or which the District has a right to have in its 



 

7 

possession pursuant to this Agreement, including documents submitted by the Consultant, 

are subject to the provisions of the Colorado Open Records Act, Sections 24-72-200.1 et 

seq., Colorado Revised Statutes, and the Consultant acknowledges that the District shall 

abide by the Colorado Open Records Act, including honoring all proper public records 

requests made thereunder.  The Consultant shall be responsible for all costs incurred in 

connection with any determinations required to be made by a court, pursuant to the 

Colorado Open Records Act.  The Consultant is advised to contact legal counsel concerning 

such acts in application of the Colorado Open Records Act to the Consultant. 

 

b. Confidential or Proprietary Materials.  If the Consultant deems any 

document(s) which it submits to the District to be confidential, proprietary, or otherwise 

protected from disclosure under the Colorado Open Records Act, then it shall appropriately 

label such document(s), and submit such document to the District together with a written 

statement describing the material which is requested to remain protected from disclosure 

and the justification for such request.  This request will either be approved or denied by the 

District; however, the District will make a good-faith effort to accommodate all reasonable 

requests, subject to the provisions of the Colorado Open Records Act. 

 

c. Stakeholder.  In the event of litigation concerning the disclosure of any 

document(s) submitted by the Consultant to the District or which the District has a right to 

have in its possession pursuant to this Agreement, the District’s sole involvement will be as 

stakeholder retaining the document(s) or having a right thereto until otherwise ordered by 

the court, and the Consultant shall be fully responsible for otherwise prosecuting or 

defending any actions concerning the document(s) at its sole expense and risk. 

 

18. PERSONS INTERESTED HEREIN. Nothing expressed or implied in this 

Agreement is intended or shall be construed to confer upon or to give to any person, other than 

the Parties hereto, any right, remedy, or claim under or by reason of this Agreement or any 

covenants, terms, conditions, or provisions thereof, and all of the covenants, terms, conditions, 

and provisions in this Agreement by and on behalf of the Parties shall be for the sole and 

exclusive benefit of the Parties hereto. 

 

19. MODIFICATION. This Agreement may be modified, amended or changed, 

except as otherwise provided herein, in whole or in part, only by an agreement in writing duly 

authorized and executed by both Parties. 

 

20. ASSIGNMENT. The Consultant shall not assign this Agreement or any interest 

hereunder, in whole or in part, without the prior written consent of the District, which consent 

may be withheld for any reason or for no reason. The District shall provide written consent only 

upon assurance from the Consultant that each proposed subcontract is evidenced in writing and 

contains all pertinent provisions and requirements of this Agreement. Any improper attempt of 

assignment shall be deemed void and of no force or effect. Consent to one assignment shall not 

be deemed to be consent to any subsequent assignment nor the waiver of any right to consent to 

such subsequent assignment. 

 



 

8 

21. SEVERABILITY. The invalidity or unenforceability of any portion or previous 

version of this Agreement shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any other portion or 

provision. Any invalid or unenforceable portion or provision shall be deemed severed from this 

Agreement and the balance of this Agreement shall be construed and enforced as if this 

Agreement did not contain such invalid or unenforceable portion or provisions. 

 

22. NON-WAIVER. No waiver of any of the provisions of this Agreement shall be 

deemed to constitute a waiver of any other provision of this Agreement, nor shall such waiver 

constitute a continuing waiver unless otherwise expressly provided herein, nor shall the waiver 

of any default hereunder be deemed to be a waiver of any subsequent default hereunder. 

 

23. GOVERNING LAW AND VENUE. This Agreement shall be governed by and 

construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Colorado, and venue for any dispute 

hereunder shall lie in the Arapahoe County District Court.  

 

24. BINDING AGREEMENT. This Agreement shall inure to and be binding on the 

heirs, executors, administrator, successors, and permitted assigns of the Parties hereto. 

 

25. INTEGRATION. This Agreement contains the entire agreement between the 

Parties, and no statement, promise or inducement made by either party or the agent of either 

party that is not contained in this Agreement shall be valid or binding. 

 

26. HEADINGS FOR CONVENIENCE ONLY. The headings, captions and titles 

contained herein are intended for convenience and reference only and are not intended to 

construe the provisions hereof. 

 

27. COUNTERPARTS. This Agreement may be executed in one or more 

counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original and together shall constitute one and the 

same instrument. 

 

 

 

 

(Remainder of page intentionally left blank)  



 

9 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have entered into this Agreement as of the day 

and year first above written. By signature of its representatives below, each party affirms it has 

taken all necessary action to authorize said representative to execute this Agreement. 

 

 

    HEATHER GARDENS METROPOLITAN DISTRICT 

 

 

             

     By:          

     Its:            

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

      

  

 

      

 

 

       

PUBLIC ALLIANCE, LLC 

 

 

             

     By:                            

     Its:           

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

      

  

 

 

 

 

 

  



 

10 

 

EXHIBIT A 

 

Election Services 

 
The Election Services to be provided by the Consultant may include, but are not limited to, the 

following.  

 

ACTION 

Inform Clerk and Recorder of election and participation/non participation 

Prepare call for nominations for review by legal counsel/publish, mail, e-

mail and/or post as required prior to deadline 

Provide, verify, and process Self-Nomination and Acceptance Forms and 

notify candidates of sufficiency or insufficiency of the same 

Determine order of candidates on ballot 

Certify order and ballot content  

File nomination petitions with Secretary of State 

Prepare ballots in accordance with statute 

Prepare notice of election for review by legal counsel/publish prior to 

deadline/transmit to Clerk and Recorder 

Mail ballots available for “inactive” persons 

Mail ballots to each active registered elector and eligible elector 

Monitor campaign and political finance filings  

Provide polling place/mail ballot drop off location/walk in voting 

location(s) and signs therefor as required by the Election Laws 

Appoint canvass board 

Provide ballots for absentee voters and in-person voters 

Provide instruction cards and necessary Election Services materials 

Count ballots/provide Election Day services including posting of election 

abstract 

Conduct canvass board meeting 

File certified statement of results with Division of Local Government and 

individuals elected to office 

Work with legal counsel to complete “post election” filings  

Prepare Certificate of Election Results 

Oaths for new directors 

Additional election services as requested 



 

11 

 

 

EXHIBIT A-1 

 

Additional Election Services 

 
The Additional Election Services may include, but are not limited to, the following: 

 

FOR RECOUNT:   

 

ACTION 

Receive request for recount 

Conduct recount (if difference between two highest number of votes is less 

than or equal to 0.5%) 

Conduct recount if requested under § 1-13.5-1306(2)(a), C.R.S. 

Submit recount results  

 

 

 



 

12 

 

EXHIBIT B 

 

 

 Election Services       $ 31,500     

 

Election Hard Costs  

    (ballot packet, postage, etc.)  $ 12,800    

    

    TOTAL Estimate    $ 44,300   

 

 

The hours spent to conduct an election can vary depending on community involvement and 
interest and the need for community/coordination meetings.  The Consultant bills on a time and 

materials basis.  The District will only be billed for actual time spent.  The Consultant anticipates 
that a majority of the time spent on Election Services will be billed at $145 per hour. The District 

will be responsible to pay all hard costs directly to the vendors, such as printing and mailing of 
ballots.   

 

 

 



BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF HEATHER GARDENS METROPOLITAN DISTRICT 

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE HEATHER GARDENS METROPOLITAN DISTRICT 

TECHNOLOGY ACCESSIBILITY STATEMENT AND TECHNICAL STANDARDS 

At a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Heather Gardens Metropolitan District, City 

of Aurora, Arapahoe County, Colorado, held at 1:00 P.M., on Thursday, January 16, 2025 at the Heather 

Gardens Clubhouse, 2888 South Heather Gardens Way, Aurora, Colorado 80014, and 

via videoconference at https://us06web.zoom.us/j/81601701147 and via telephone conference at 

Dial In: +1 346 248 7799, Meeting ID: 816 0170 1147, Password Not Required, at which a 

quorum was present, the following resolution was adopted: 

WHEREAS, the Heather Gardens Metropolitan District (the “District”) is a special district 

organized and existing pursuant to Sections 32-1-101 et seq., C.R.S.; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the District (collectively referred to as the “Board” or 

individually as “Director(s)”) has a duty to perform certain obligations in order to assure the efficient 

operation of the District; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 32-1-1001(1)(m), C.R.S., the District’s Board is authorized to 

adopt, amend, and enforce bylaws and rules and regulations not in conflict with the constitution and the 

laws of the State for carrying on the business, objects, and affairs of the Board and the District; and  

WHEREAS, the Colorado Anti-Discrimination Act (“CADA”), as set forth in Title 24, Article 34, 

Parts 3 through 8 of the Colorado Revised Statutes provides that it is unlawful to discriminate against an 

individual with a disability as that term is defined in Section 24-34-301(7), C.R.S.; and 

WHEREAS, the Colorado General Assembly, through House Bill 21-1110 and subsequently 

amended by Senate Bill 23-244 (the “Technology Accessibility Bills”), amended CADA to include certain 

provisions regarding website accessibility for individuals with disabilities; and 

WHEREAS, the Technology Accessibility Bills require the Colorado Office of Information 

Technology (the “OIT”) to establish rules regarding information technology systems accessibility 

standards for individuals with disabilities; and 

WHEREAS, on February 23, 2024, the OIT adopted the Rules Establishing Technology 

Accessibility Standards as contained in 8 CCR § 1501-11, et seq., (the “Accessibility Rules”) requiring all 

public entities and state agencies, as such terms are defined in the Accessibility Rules, to comply with the 

Accessibility Rules; and 

WHEREAS, 8 CCR § 1501-11.4 specifically defines the term public entity to include special 

districts; and 

WHEREAS, compliance with the Accessibility Rules requires the District to adopt and publicly 

post in a conspicuous place a Technology Accessibility Statement, as such term is defined in the 

Accessibility Rules, by July 1, 2024; and 

WHEREAS, the Technical Standards is defined in the Accessibility Rules at Section 11.5(a) as 

Web Content Accessibility Guidelines (“WCAG”) 2.1 Level AA; and 



WHEREAS, the Accessibility Rules require the District to ensure applicable information and 

communication technology (the “ICT”), as such term is defined in the Accessibility Rules, is compliant 

with the Technical Standards by July 1, 2024; and   

WHEREAS, the District desires to adopt and implement the Technical Standards and required 

Technology Accessibility Statement in accordance therewith; and 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 

HEATHER GARDENS METROPOLITAN DISTRICT AS FOLLOWS: 

1. Accessibility Rules. The District recognizes the adoption of the Accessibility Rules, as contained 

within 8 CCR § 1501-11, et seq., and shall endeavor to comply with the applicable requirements 

contained therein. 

2. Technology Accessibility Statement. The District approves the adoption of the Technology 

Accessibility Statement attached hereto in Exhibit A (the “Statement”) in accordance with Section 

11.6 of the Accessibility Rules and recognizes that such Statement will be posted publicly in a 

conspicuous location on the District’s website/at the following location: https://www.hgmetrodist.org.  

3. Actions to Effectuate Resolution. Management and legal counsel for the District are authorized 

and directed to take all actions necessary and appropriate to effectuate this Resolution and the 

imposition of the Technology Accessibility Statement and Technical Standards contemplated 

hereunder. All actions not inconsistent with the provisions of this Resolution heretofore taken by the 

members of the Board of Directors and/or management or legal counsel for the District and the 

officers, agents and employees of the District and directed toward effectuating the purposes stated 

herein are hereby ratified, approved and confirmed. 

4. Effective Date. This Resolution Adopting the Heather Gardens Metropolitan District Technology 

Accessibility Statement and Technical Standards shall take effect on the date and at the time of its 

adoption. 

 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank.] 

  

https://www.hgmetrodist.org/


APPROVED AND ADOPTED THIS 16th DAY OF January 2025. 

 

HEATHER GARDENS 

METROPOLITAN DISTRICT 

         

________________________________ 

        By: William Gold 

        Its: President 

  



HEATHER GARDENS METROPOLITAN DISTRICT TECHNOLOGY 

ACCESSIBILITY STATEMENT 

Heather Gardens Metropolitan District (the “District”) is committed to providing equitable 

access to our services, programs, and activities to all members of the public. The District’s 

ongoing accessibility efforts work toward being compliant with the Web Content Accessibility 

Guidelines (WCAG) version 2.1, level AA criteria. The District welcomes comments on how to 

improve its technology’s accessibility for users with disabilities as well as requests for 

reasonable modifications and/or accommodation to any District services, programs, and/or 

activities.  

Please let us know if you encounter inaccessible information and communication technology. 

The District is committed to responding to requests for reasonable modifications and/or 

accommodation as well as reports of accessibility issues in a timely manner.  

For reports of inaccessible information and communication technology or to request 

reasonable modifications or accommodations to District information and communication 

technology, please contact the District at: 

Phone: 303- 755-0652 

E-mail: questions@hgmetrodist.org 

Mailing Address: Heather Gardens Clubhouse, 2888 South Heather Gardens Way, Aurora, 

Colorado 80014 

Physical Address: Heather Gardens Clubhouse, 2888 South Heather Gardens Way, Aurora, 

Colorado 80014 

 



1 

RESOLUTION OF 

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 

HEATHER GARDENS METROPOLITAN DISTRICT  

2025 REGULAR SPECIAL DISTRICT ELECTION RESOLUTION 

At a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Heather Gardens Metropolitan 

District, City of Aurora, Arapahoe County, Colorado, held at 1:00 P.M., on Thursday, January 

16, 2025, Heather Gardens Clubhouse, 2888 S. Heather Gardens Way, Aurora, Colorado 80014, 

via videoconference at https://us06web.zoom.us/j/81601701147 and via telephone conference at 

Dial In: +1 346 248 7799  , Meeting ID: 816 0170 1147, Password Not Required, at which a 

quorum was present, the following resolution (the “Resolution”) was adopted: 

WHEREAS, Heather Gardens Metropolitan District (the “District”) was organized 

pursuant to the Special District Act, Article 1 of Title 32, C.R.S. (the “Act”), after approval of the 

eligible electors of the District, by order of the District Court in and for Arapahoe County, 

Colorado, dated April 6, 1983; and 

WHEREAS, elections may be held pursuant to the Act; the Uniform Election Code of 

1992, Articles 1 to 13 of Title 1, C.R.S. (the “Uniform Code”); and the Colorado Local 

Government Election Code, Article 13.5 of Title 1, C.R.S. (the “Local Government Election 

Code”) (the Act, Uniform Code, and Local Government Election Code are collectively referred 

to herein as the “Election Laws”) for the purpose of 1) electing members of the Board and 2) 

presenting certain ballot questions to the eligible electors of the District; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 32-1-305.5(3)(a), C.R.S., the term of office of members of 

the Board of Directors for the District (the “Board”) elected in a regular special district election  is 

four (4) years; and 

WHEREAS, the Board currently includes three (3) members elected to serve on the Board, 

two (2) members appointed to fill vacancies on the Board, and zero (0) vacancies; and  

WHEREAS, the term of office for two (2) members of the Board for the District shall 

expire after their successors are elected at the next regular election for the District scheduled to be 

held on the Tuesday succeeding the first Monday of May in accordance with Section 1-13.5-111(1), 

C.R.S.: May 6, 2025; and  

WHEREAS, the term for two (2) members of the Board for the District, who were 

appointed to fill vacancies on the Board and to serve until the next regular election, shall expire after 

their successors are elected at the election to serve the remaining unexpired portion of the term, 

which is two years; and  

WHEREAS, in accordance with the Election Laws, an election must be conducted to elect 

to the Board of the District two (2) Directors to serve for terms of four years and two (2) Directors 

to serve terms of two years; and 



 

 

 

  2 

 WHEREAS, the number of Directors to be elected to the Board of the District may increase 

following the adoption of this Resolution should a Director’s office be deemed vacant in accordance 

with Section 32-1-905, C.R.S. prior to the election; and   

 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 32-1-804(1), C.R.S., the Board shall govern the conduct 

of the election and shall render all interpretations and make all decisions as to controversies or other 

matters arising in the conduct of the election; and 

 

WHEREAS, Sections 1-1-111(2), 1-13.5-108, and 32-1-804(2), C.R.S. provide that all 

powers and authority granted to the Board for the conduct of regular and special elections, 

including making all initial decisions as to controversies or other matters arising in the operation 

of the Local Government Election Code, may be exercised by a “Designated Election Official” 

designated by the Board; and 

 

WHEREAS, Sections 1-13.5-501(1) & -(1.5), C.R.S., require that, between seventy-five 

(75) and one hundred (100) days before a regular election, the Designated Election Official shall 

provide notice of a call for nominations for the election by publication, as defined in Section 1-

13.5-501(2), C.R.S., and by any one of the following means: mailing the notice to each address 

at which one or more active registered electors resides as specified in the registration list 

provided by the county clerk and recorder as of the date that is one hundred fifty (150) days prior 

to the election; including the notice as a prominent part of an informational mailing sent by the 

District to the eligible electors of the District; posting the information on the official website of 

the District; or, if permitted under Section 1-13.5-501(1.5)(d), C.R.S., posting the notice in at 

least three public places within the boundaries of the District and, in addition, in the office of the 

Clerk and Recorder of Arapahoe County; and 

 

WHEREAS, Section 1-13.5-1104(2), C.R.S. requires the Designated Election Official to 

supervise the distributing, handling, and counting of ballots and the survey of returns, and to take 

the necessary steps to protect the confidentiality of the ballots cast and the integrity of the 

election; and  

 

WHEREAS, Section 1-7.5-107(4)(b)(II), C.R.S. specifies that the Designated Election 

Official shall designate a secure drop-off location that is under his or her supervision, and 

Section 1-5-102(1), C.R.S. requires that the Designated Election Official divide the jurisdiction 

into as many election precincts as he or she deems expedient for the convenience of eligible 

electors of the jurisdiction and designate the polling place for each precinct; and  

 

WHEREAS, Section 1-13.5-1004(1), C.R.S. provides that the Designated Election 

Official shall keep a list of names of eligible electors who have applied for absentee voters’ 

ballots and those permanent absentee voters placed on the list pursuant to Section 1-13.5-

1003(2), C.R.S., which list must contain certain other information as set out by statute; and  

 

WHEREAS, Section 1-13.5-513(1), C.R.S. provides that if the only matter before the 

electors in an election is the election of persons to office and if, at the close of business day on the 

sixty-third (63rd) day before the election or at any time thereafter, there are not more candidates than 



 

 

 

  3 

offices to be filled at the election, the Designated Election Official shall cancel the election and 

declare the candidates elected if so instructed by resolution of the governing body; and 

 

WHEREAS, Section 1-11-103(3), C.R.S. provides that if an election is cancelled 

pursuant to Section 1-13.5-513(1), C.R.S., the District shall file notice and a copy of the 

resolution of such cancellation with the Colorado Division of Local Government (the 

“Division”); and   

 

 WHEREAS, Sections 1-11-103(3) & 32-1-104(1), C.R.S. require the District to certify 

to the Division the results of any elections held by the District and include the District’s business 

address, telephone number, and contact person; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the Board desires to call an election and set forth herein the procedures for 

conducting such election as authorized by the Election Laws. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 

HEATHER GARDENS METROPOLITAN DISTRICT THAT:  

 

1. The Board hereby calls a regular election of the eligible electors of the District to be 

held between the hours of 7:00 A.M. and 7:00 P.M. on the Tuesday succeeding the first Monday of 

May pursuant to and in accordance with Section 1-13.5-111(1), C.R.S., the Election Laws, and 

other applicable laws (May 6, 2025), for the purpose of electing two (2) Directors to serve a four-

year term and two (2) Directors to serve a two-year term on the Board (the “Election”), as such 

numbers may change due to one or more vacancies arising on the Board after the adoption of this 

Resolution and prior to the Election.  The Election shall be conducted as an independent mail ballot 

election, pursuant to Part 11 of the Local Government Election Code. 

 

2. Pursuant to Section 32-1-804(2), C.R.S., the Board hereby names AJ Beckman of 

Public Alliance, LLC, as the Designated Election Official for the Election.  The Board hereby 

directs the District’s general counsel to oversee the general conduct of the Election and authorizes 

the Designated Election Official to take all other action necessary for the proper conduct thereof.  

The Designated Election Official shall act as the primary contact with the Clerk and Recorder of 

Arapahoe County, Colorado (the “County”) and shall be primarily responsible for ensuring the 

proper conduct of the Election, including, but not limited to, distributing, handling, and counting of 

ballots and the survey of returns, taking the necessary steps to protect the confidentiality of the 

ballots cast and the integrity of the Election, appointing election judges as necessary, appointing 

the board of canvassers, arranging for the required notices of the Election and printing of ballots, 

maintaining a permanent absentee voter list, and directing that all other appropriate actions be 

accomplished. 

 

3. The Board hereby directs the Designated Election Official to provide notice by 

publication of a call for nominations for the Election in accordance with the requirements of Section 

1-13.5-501, C.R.S., which shall include information regarding the director offices to be voted upon 

at the Election, where a self-nomination and acceptance form or letter may be obtained, the deadline 

for submitting the self-nomination and acceptance form or letter to the Designated Election Official, 

and information on obtaining an absentee ballot. The notice shall be published one time in The 



 

 

 

  4 

Sentinel which is a newspaper of a general circulation in the District, between seventy-five (75) and 

one hundred (100) days before the Election. The notice shall also be made by  

(1) mailing the notice, at the lowest cost option, to each address at which one or more active 

registered electors of the District resides as specified in the registration list provided by the 

county clerk and recorder as of the date that is one hundred fifty (150) days prior to the date 

of the Election;  

(2) including the notice as a prominent part of a newsletter, annual report, billing insert, 

billing statement, letter, voter information card, or other notice of election, or other 

informational mailing sent by the District to the eligible electors of the District;  

(3) posting the information on the official website of the District; or  

(4) posting the notice in at least three public places within the territorial boundaries of the 

District and, in addition, posting a notice in the office of the Clerk and Recorder of 

__________ County, as is permitted because the District has fewer than one thousand 

eligible electors and is wholly located within __________ County, the population of which 

is less than thirty thousand people. 

 

4. The Board deems it expedient for the convenience of the electors that it shall 

establish a polling place & drop-off location for all regular and special elections of the District.  

There shall be one (1) polling place & drop-off location for the elections.  This polling place & 

drop-off location shall be used for any regular or special elections to be held in 2025 and in each 

year thereafter until such polling place & drop-off location is changed by duly adopted resolution of 

the Board.  Such polling place & drop-off location shall be located at Heather Gardens Clubhouse, 

2888 S. Heather Gardens Way, Aurora, Colorado 80014. All voters for the District, including 

handicapped and nonresident voters unless otherwise permitted by law, shall return their ballots to 

the designated polling place & drop-off location by mail or delivery. All eligible electors may also 

obtain a replacement ballot from the polling place & drop-off location until 7:00 P.M. on election 

day in accordance with Section 1-13.5-1105(4), C.R.S. A map showing the District’s boundaries is 

on file at the Heather Gardens Clubhouse, 2888 S. Heather Gardens Way, Aurora, Colorado 80014 

and is available for examination by all interested persons. 

 

5. Applications for an absentee voter’s ballot or for permanent absentee voter status 

may be filed with the Designated Election Official, 405 Urban Street, Suite 310, Lakewood, 

Colorado 80228, between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m., until the close of business on the 

Tuesday immediately preceding the Election (April 29, 2025). 

 

6. Pursuant to Section 1-13.5-303, C.R.S., all candidates must file a self-nomination 

and acceptance form or letter signed by the candidate and by an eligible elector of the District as a 

witness to the signature of the candidate with the Designated Election Official no later than 5:00 

P.M. on the day that is sixty-seven (67) days prior to the Election (February 28, 2025).  Self-

nomination and acceptance forms are available at the Designated Election Official’s office located 

at the above address.   

 

7. Pursuant to Section 1-13.5-513, C.R.S., the Board hereby authorizes and directs the 

Designated Election Official to cancel the Election and declare the candidates elected if, at or after 

the close of business on the sixty-third (63rd) day before the Election (March 4, 2025), there are not 

more candidates for director than offices to be filled, including candidates filing affidavits of intent 



 

 

 

  5 

to be write-in candidates, and so long as the only matter before the electors is the election of persons 

to office.  Under these circumstances, the Board further authorizes and directs the Designated 

Election Official to provide notice of the cancellation by publication in accordance with Section 1-

13.5-501, C.R.S. and to post notice of the cancellation at each polling location, the office of the 

Designated Election Official, the Arapahoe County Clerk and Recorder’s Office, and with the 

Division.  The Designated Election Official shall also file notice and a copy of this Resolution 

authorizing the cancellation of the Election with the Division pursuant to Section 1-11-103(3), 

C.R.S. The Designated Election Official shall also notify the candidates that the Election was 

canceled and they were elected by acclamation.  

 

8. In accordance with Sections 1-11-103(3) & 32-1-104(1), C.R.S., the District 

directs the Designated Election Official to notify the Division of the results of any elections held 

by the District, including the District’s business address, telephone number, and contact person 

within thirty (30) days after the Election (June 5, 2025). 

  

9. The Designated Election Official and the officers, agents, consultants, and 

employees, if any, of the District are hereby authorized and directed to take all action necessary 

or appropriate to effectuate the provisions of this Resolution. 

 

10. All actions not inconsistent with the provisions of this Resolution heretofore taken 

by the members of the Board, the Designated Election Official, and the officers, agents, 

consultants, and employees, if any, of the District, and directed toward holding the Election for 

the purposes stated herein are hereby ratified, approved, and confirmed. 

 

11. All prior acts, orders, or resolutions, or parts thereof, by the District in conflict 

with this Resolution are hereby repealed, except that this repealer shall not be construed to revive 

any act, order, or resolution, or part thereof, heretofore repealed. 

 

12. If any section, paragraph, clause, or provision of this Resolution shall be adjudged 

to be invalid or unenforceable, the invalidity or unenforceability of such section, paragraph, 

clause, or provision shall not affect any of the remaining sections, paragraphs, clauses or 

provisions of this Resolution, it being the intention that the various parts hereof are severable. 

 

13. The District shall be responsible for the payment of any and all costs associated with 

the conduct of the Election, including its cancellation, if necessary, and those costs incurred 

pursuant to the terms and conditions of an election agreement with the County, if any. 

 

14. This Resolution shall take effect on the date and at the time of its adoption. 

 

 

 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank.]



 

6 

 

 Whereupon, a motion was made and seconded, and upon a majority vote, this Resolution 

was approved by the Board. 

 

 ADOPTED AND APPROVED THIS 16TH DAY OF JANUARY, 2025.  

 

 

 

  HEATHER GARDENS METROPOLITAN 

DISTRICT  

 

        

 William Gold, President 

 

ATTEST: 

 

      

Forrest McClure, Secretary 

 

 

 

   
 

 






























